RN BN

ATED INCOME STATEMENT
(RIFEE BRI B3R AR H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TEAF+_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

—ZEREF ZETEmEF
2005 2004
st ARBTFT AREF T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(£3)
(restated)
ERE Turnover 6 1,712,102 1,524,409
HE AR Cost of sales (1,400,869) (1,267,109)
EH Gross profit 311,233 257,300
Hh 2 WA Other operating income 6 30,752 19,200
HEEHR Selling expenses (169,639) (156,367)
EEER Administrative expenses (115,962) (123,502)
Hi¥BER Other operating expenses (18,292) (31,661)
e kNI Share of results of associates (2,732) (1,938)
HBER Finance costs 7 (22,166) (15,384)
BrELRTE A (E518) Profit (loss) before taxation 13,194 (52,352)
B Taxation 8 (13,696) (1,119)
REFER Loss for the year 9 (502) (53,471)
Hep e Attributable to:
riN/NG Equity holders of the Company 1,229 (52,485)
&1 A (B 18)
DR Minority interests (1,731) (986)
(502) (53,471)
s Dividends 10
— RHKRE — Interim - _
— BRARHBRE — Proposed final 22,866 =
22,866 —
BRERRT (B18) Earnings (loss) per share - basic 11 AE®TRMB0.003  ARMIL(RMBO.115)
—EEREEH
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(RIEE B EBRAZ Gt IR A )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-ZZARFF -A=+—HIFFE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

—ZZTRE —ETNEF
2005 2004
K e ARETIT ARETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(E3l)
(restated)
ERENEE Non-current assets
Bl Technical know-how 15 4,182 3,440
Mz - REREE Property, plant and equipment 16 812,832 700,194
FETRE Construction-in-progress 17 90,168 221,164
& 3 Prepaid lease payments
Z AN HEERE on land use rights 18 88,985 66,725
/NI Interests in associates 19 30,279 22,893
i ElNCIN=E Loan to an associate 20 4,440 2,481
AHHECIRE Available-for-sale investments 21 140,777 —
=) Investment securities 22 — 171,833
1,171,663 1,188,730
mEEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 274,765 300,253
JE IR R e SRR Trade and bills receivables 24 281,721 324,338
T A Prepaid lease payments
Z A EERE on land use rights 18 2,471 1,826
HMEWFIE - &%  Other receivables, deposits
KB FRIE and prepayment 65,110 58,990
AR E H H Exported value-added-tax
HEF K recoverable — 2,814
JE s B e R AR Amount due from immediate
NCIE/ Q| holding company 25 49,288 41,467
JFE Uk Bt & R B3R 0E Amount due from an associate 26 3,035 —
E\Eﬁxﬁ Trading investments 27 — 58,551
AR B P15 A 50 Income tax recoverable — 538
ﬁETTﬁUﬁLE% Pledged bank deposits 28 65,149 57,459
REBEESFK
?ﬁi‘f%ﬂlﬁi\ Derivative financial instruments 29 84 —
TERKEIRE4E%  Bank balances and cash 298,042 280,474
1,039,665 1,126,710

M%A\Tﬁ T‘ H)« FE AN
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CONSO BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(RIEEE EERNZ &5t IRAIAEH])

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE _TTAFF_A=+—HIEFE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

=

—_EThEF —EEMF
2005 2004
k23 AR¥TFIiT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
mEEE Current liabilities
FERTERFR R RIE Trade and bills payables 30 345,620 307,769
Hh B R Other payables
RETE R and accrued charges 68,534 77,627
FEA B R B FRIR Amount due to an associate 31 145 =
ERBE Tax payable 3,877 —
R—FAN2EH 2 Current portion of long-term
REIRITE R bank loans, unsecured
— 32 — 250,000
ERIRTTE R Short-term bank
— EE loans, unsecured 32 418,969 306,285
837,145 941,681
MEEEFR Net current assets 202,520 185,029
BEERRBDARE Total assets less current liabilities 1,374,183 1,373,759
BER R Capital and reserves
f& 7 Share capital 33 457,313 457,313
(G Reserves 888,866 912,009
BOR R H RS Proposed final dividend 22,866 —
EANTIRKENLIESR  Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 1,369,045 1,369,322
PHBERER Minority interests 1,092 4,284
1,370,137 1,373,606
ERBAER Non-current liabilities
BEEE Deferred tax liabilities 34 4,046 153
1,374,183 1,373,759

AP BHRRAFESTAEFISTEN ST NFA T HHKEZTSRAERERAM YA TIEERREE -

The financial statements on pages 87 to 157 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors
on 24 March 2006 and are signed on its behalf by:

Eimik BE Mr. He Duanshi Ms. Guo Qin
g = Director Director

—“ETRFFR
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FeHERS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN

(RFEZFEEBRAZ &5 RAIAE )

GES IN EQUITY

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

ARREERAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B % 1] i B
B* BRE LRe Ee (ERA ERRE KRN KRG gt  RRHE it
Asset
Share Share Capital  Reserve revaluation Exchange Retained Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total
ARETFT ARETR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTLT AR¥TT ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(itb) (ith) (itc)
(Note b) ~ (Note b) ~ (Note ¢)
RZZEME—A—F - BREZT
At 1 January 2004
as originally stated 457,313 466,618 78,642 159,425 25,850 744 250,184 — 1,438,776 — 1,438,776
SRR ED T E (RNR2)
Effect of changes in accounting
policies (see Note 2) — — — — — — — — — 3,968 3,968
R-FEmE-A-0 2
At 1 January 2004 as restated 457,313 466,618 78,642 159,425 25,850 744 250,184 — 1,438,776 3968 1,442,744
BEBNERELZERER
Exchange difference arising
on translation of
overseas operation — — — — — 1,324 — — 1,324 (400) 924
AEEER
Loss for the year - — — - - — (52,485) - (52,485) (986)  (53,471)
AEEERAZ N ER
Total recognised income and
expense for the year — — — — — 1,324 (52,485) — (51,161) (1,386) (52,547)
ERRE
Dividends paid - — — - - — (18,293) — (18,293) — (18,293)
SERRRE
Investment from a
minority shareholder — — — — — — — — — 12 12
ERIEBR2EE
Capital contribution receivable
from a minority shareholder — — — — — — — — — 1,690 1,690

W R ERER DB RAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATE NGES IN EQUITY (continued)
(RIFEE BRI B3R AR H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TEAF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

DFIREER AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Bt % 1] i 1.
B* BRE LRE e (ERA ERRE FEEYN KRG Bt RR#2 st
Asset
Share Share Capital  Reserve revaluation Exchange Retained Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total

ARETR AREFT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFT ARETR ARETT AREFR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(itb) (itb) (itc)
(Note b) ~ (Note b)  (Note ¢)

RZZEME+-A=+-A
At 31 December 2004
BEBNERELZERZR
Exchange difference arising

on translation of

overseas operation
REBRERTERED
Share of changes in

equity of associates
REREM
Profit for the year
BERAEN

Transfer from retained earnings

AEEERA KX ER
Total recognised income and
expenses for the year
HERB AR
Disposal of a subsidiary
WERIEA Az BIMER
Acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary
“ERREREAERE
Proposed final 2005 dividend

R-TTRFT-A=+-A
At 31 December 2005

457,313 466,618 78,642 159,425 25,850 2,068 179,406

1,369,322 4,284 1,373,606

- - - - - (1,624) — - (1,624) 144 (1,480)
= = = 118 = = = = 118 — 118
= = = - - = 1,209 = 1,229 (1,731) (502)
- - - 783 - - (783) - - - -
= = = 901 = (1,624) 446 = ©@77)  (1587)  (1,864)

_ _ _ — - - - - = (226) (226)

- _ _ - - _ - - — (1379 (1379)

_ — — = - - (22,866) 22,866 - - i

457,313 466,618 78,642 160,326 25,850 444 156,986 22,866 1,369,045 1,092 1,370,137

—EERFEFR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

=
e ED

(RIFEEEBERNZ &5t IRAIAEH])
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-ZZARFF -A=+—HIFFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

TS
92 Shan

&t

1 ENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B Notes :
(a) BEPEE@ERRAABNATER (AT (a) Pursuant to the relevant People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) regulations
E12]) RBERFERATZRFDIR and the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”), profit after taxation
shall be appropriated in the following order :
(1) R REEE (1) make up accumulated losses;
2) RER RS FN0% A E BB AT 2) transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory surplus
® o BEERMAESSEEFME reserve. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches
REI50% + FJ LA EIRER 50% of the registered capital, such transfers need not be made;
(3) REF &R F5%E10%EEE A (3) transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory public
& welfare reserve;
(4) REARRNRRASBBIEER (4) transfer to the discretionary surplus reserve an amount approved by
BRAES R the shareholders in general meetings; and
(5) RGBT RRE - (5) distribute dividends to shareholders.
REEEERMABES REAE AR S The amount transferred to the statutory surplus reserve and statutory
Z B FEERR R E e ERIR S 2 public welfare reserve shall be based on the profit after taxation in
BEERA <R EHFIFTE - the statutory accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards.
(b) BARNTES REMD R ER (b) Capital reserve and share premium account
BARPEEFEVREARAARECELRER Capital reserve comprises mainly surplus between the appraised value of
%7 8 R 7] 3 2 AT TR (B B AT AR MO AR assets and value of shares issued when the Company was converted from
AREFE - ROBERATITRERES - I a state-owned enterprise to a joint stock limited company. Share premium
EMRETIREER - REFREHEER - & account arose from issues of shares net of issuing expenses. According to
ARAES KRG EERR e ARG MR - relevant PRC regulations, capital reserve and share premium account can
only be used to increase share capital.
(c) FEEE (c) Reserve funds
EERR fFERR
LHe EELRS N
(& (i) (B (ii)) (& (iii)) #at
Statutory Statutory Discretionary
surplus public welfare surplus
reserve reserve reserve
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) (Note (iii)) Total
AREFT AREFIT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZEMF—A—H At 1 January 2004
k=TENE+=A=1+—H and 31 December 2004 68,336 29,543 61,546 159,425
EiEBEDRERES Share of changes in
equity of associates 79 39 — 118
BERB R Transfer from retained earnings 522 261 — 783
RZZEFRFE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 68,937 29,843 61,546 160,326

B IR A A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEME

B = M o«

NGES IN EQUITY (continued)
(RIZE B ZERN S5 REIAEH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

(c) HEED (&

Hiat

0]

(if)

(iii)

EEBRBRAES

AEEFRRFEETRE ZBRHi%E
EHH10%EEATERBATES ° B
FABAESEETMELRN50%
B AT BRI - ZAEESAAR
TR E B MR - Br T BB
BN GEREERTES% - ET
FEAR A TE & A H)25% ©

AEEFRRFEETREB ZBRHi%E
A HIE%RZE10%EEAE RS © It
FEEATEE RBNMEREARR AT
SREMRENEAMES L - MZE
BMEZFTBRETIANARINAE ° BRAF
BEIN AT ARSI ARES
B3R o

EERHBLRES

EERHRABSWRE G PR
WEERABREFEA - AIBIEBRHE
BRI IARA - (B SR B R A AR
BREARERHBE - HIHBERE
SIARBRRERZREB -

HE_TEAF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

(c) Reserve funds (continued)

Notes:

0]

(if)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required in each year to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation as reported under the PRC statutory accounts to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered
share capital. This reserve can be used to make up any losses
incurred or to increase share capital. Except for the reduction of
losses incurred, any other usage should not result in this reserve
balance falling below 25% of the registered capital.

Statutory public welfare reserve

The Group is required in each year to transfer 5% to 10% of the profit
after taxation as reported under the PRC statutory accounts to the
statutory public welfare reserve. This reserve is restricted to capital
expenditure for employees’ collective welfare facilities which are
owned by the Company. Except in liquidation, the statutory public
welfare reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

Discretionary surplus reserve

The discretionary surplus reserve can be set up by means of
appropriation from the retained earnings or transfer from statutory
public welfare reserve. Subject to approval by shareholders in general
meetings, the reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred
and to increase share capital. Any transfers to the reserve also
require the approval of shareholders in general meetings.

—TTRETH
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(RIFEEEBERNZ &5t IRAIAEH])

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-ZZARFF -A=+—HIFFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

—ZERE ZETNE
2005 2004
AR%TFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(Restated)
BEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BrEans A (BE) Profit (loss) before taxation 13,194 (52,352)
HE Adjustments for:
THEREZ Amortisation of prepaid lease payment
BN HERIEE on land use rights 2,471 1,826
RERER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 7,598 15,993
R 8 Amortisation of technical know-how 808 780
RITHMEWA Bank interest income (4,924) (5,212)
e Depreciation 94,816 88,163
BEREZREBA Dividend income from trading investments — (467)
BisEH Finance costs 22,166 15,384
H & L {8 A U s Gain on disposal of land use rights (12,912) —
HEWE - BE Gain on disposal of property, plant and
W equipment (1,730) (2,136)
AHEHERE Impairment loss on an
ZRERE available-for-sale investments 18,000 —
REZERRBEER Impairment loss on an investment security — 12,000
TESHMIA Increase in fair value of derivative
NFELE N financial instruments (84) —
KREMBWA Interest income from an investment security - (2,817)
AEHERE Interest income from an
Z A BHA available-for-sale investment (6,753) —
LN RERMEWA Interest income from loan to an associate (80) —
HE KT E R R EE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 225 =
HEBEREZR G Realised gain on sale of trading investments (91) (4,348)
(L& AR ER Share of results of associates 2,732 1,938
EEREZEHER Unrealised loss on trading investments - 11,449
1% & & 5 s Write-off of an investment security — 1,500

SR E R RO B R F
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OW STATEMENT (continued)

(RIBEE EBIRN . &5t IR A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE-_TTRFF-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

—ZTEF —ETWF
2005 2004
ARBTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(Restated)
HEESEBA Operating cash flow before movements
REHERE in working capital 135,436 81,701
FER D () Decrease (increase) in inventories 25,055 (49,715)
VS E S Y Decrease (increase) in trade and bills
JEWFIR « e RIEM receivables, other receivables, deposits
FIBRAREHARE and prepayments, export value added
R A (35 n) tax receivable 35,887 (17,926)
R EZZER QA Increase in amount due from immediate
IR holding company (7,821) (7,126)
JIE Wi B 2 R FROB 1 0 Increase in amount due from an associate (554) ==
ERNERERRER - Hit Increase in trade and bills payables, other
FERT SRR EST B R payables and accrued charges 28,834 101,027
JE B 45 1) ) R IEE N Increase in amount due to an associate 145 —
BWEEEZRE Cash generated from operations 216,982 107,961
ENPEMEH PRC income tax paid (5,388) (2,311)
BEXBRELE NET CASH FROM
ZReERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES 211,594 105,650
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(RIEE B EBRAZ Gt IR A )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE-ZZARFF -A=+—HIFFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

—ZERE ZETNE
2005 2004
fit 5t ARBTFT AREF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(£3l)
(Restated)
REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
YR TIIEFIE Payment for construction-in-progress (79,400) (156,849)
RITEEEERES Increase in pledged bank deposits (7,690) (57,459)

g
BAME  BER&E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (30,351) (20,845)
REHE QA Investment in an associate (10,000) —
B AR B Loan advance to an associate (4,440) —
BB ARy Purchase of technical know-how (1,550) —
TR Increase in prepaid lease payments

T & FIFE on land use rights (1,123) (4,360)
HEEERE Proceeds on disposal of

FT1§30E trading investments 58,642 39,099
U el A] it i Repayment from

2% E A available-for-sale investment 13,000 —
& T3 A AT IR Proceeds from disposal of land use rights 9,254 —
BURERA f HH E R E Interest income from an

ZF B WA available-for-sale investment 6,753 —
BEWEERTTH B Bank interest received 4,924 5,212
B E = R R E R Interest income received from loan to an

FEWA associate 80 —
HEFEIRMERA Proceeds from disposal of

construction-in-progress 4,147 —
HENE  HE Proceeds from disposal of property,

PE RS plant and equipment 3,145 4,348
el )5 NG Disposal of a subsidiary 35 65 —
B IR E Dividend income received

B E A from investments - 467
W ER 3% & FILS A Interest income received from

an investment security — 2,817

BAEERE Purchase of trading investments - (70,000)

BARERES Purchase of investment securities — (130,056)
REEBME NET CASH USED IN

ZHReSE INVESTING ACTIVITIES (34,544) (387,626)

M%A‘\T)’:&,;‘HA FE AN
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OW STATEMENT (continued)

(IRIFEEE Z iR RN &5t IR AR #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HBE —_FTTERF+-_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

—ZEREF ZETEmEF
2005 2004
st ARBTFT AREF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(E7)
(Restated)
MERY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (625,305) (50,000)
BEARHE Interest paid (22,166) (15,384)
HILIRITER New bank loan raised 487,989 232,129
PERRKE Investments from a minority shareholder - 12
EfRRE Dividends paid - (18,293)
MEEBR ) E NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
E5&FHE FINANCING ACTIVITIES (159,482) 148,464
ReRBEEED NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
B GRY) B8 CASH EQUIVALENTS 17,568 (133,512)
EPMZHRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALETNS AT
RB&EED THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 280,474 413,986
FRZB® CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REEERY AT THE END OF THE YEAR
BROTERAEBRKE S represented by bank balances and cash 298,042 280,474
—TTRFFIR
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M & B X ME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA ANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIF &5 LERNZ B3R AR H))

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

1. —iREHE 1. General

ARRRRPEARKME ([HE)
Az B BR AR - RAF KRG
R=ANRF+-_REEBBHARS
FRBEMRAE ([BEZAT]) £ - HARK
AE-—NNLFEAERYZZ ML

The Company is a joint stock limited company established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with limited liability. The
shares of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 1996
and listed its A shares at Shenzhen Stock Exchange in July

=

%%iﬁ%%ﬁ“%% BEXEHEAREE
T&M%%ﬁaﬁ SESEAREER
DRRARRB 2 REERRBNE

Tﬂ BT MR R R [F AT B R

ﬁklﬁ’ﬂl%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&@ﬂ

1997.

The directors of the Company regard Xinhua Lukang
Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, a state-owned limited
liability company established in the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited, a wholly state-owned limited liability

company established in the PRC, as being the immediate
holding company.

AHBHERAARE (TARK]) 2
5 ARBIRBARR ZNREMEE

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of

B o the Company.
AEEFZREME  BERFEEX The Group are principally engaged in the development,
SR 2B  (cIRHEMER - manufacturing and sales of bulk pharmaceuticals, pharmaceutical

preparations, chemical products and other products.

LI BT 2 R SRR 1 B BR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

W= MEE o

L STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIFEEE iR RN &5t IR AR #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

RAEEMEREER /
EAt R e

RAEE  AEEHERRAZERE
BEHMASHEM BBV BRSE
R BESFERMRE(ETXR
BREAREMEREER])  ZFE
AERAN_ZTRF—A—B&®UE
Rin 2 58 - RAMHBBYBR
SEUEHHREBRR  HAEER
BRURGAEZEBEBRZ 2577
BaE  LESEBIBBRRER
REGBERRBIBZ 2 EB M
W ZFR2VNTTECNECEHE
B e AR ERAFE BV BRE
AU RN ST FERAESTHFRELZ
EERBINZINTE -

&MIR

REFE  AEECERAEESHE
AIZE32 [SR T A  REREZFI X
BEGTERFEIGRIERMTA - i
RRFTE] - BR G ERIEI25E R
EFEPER R-TTRF—A—
B ARG FREMALERZER
BRHERIFEI95E - EA EARFFH M
BEERBBEETEPEZRER T
BRERLFE - RASHHRRAE
SRTEIE - B SRTEREI2R ZE
BAREHAEE s M TRELS
AZE - RETAB ST ERFEI95
MEAZTEZERMEINT :

MBEERMBREBZ BRI E
AEBD BB S ERIE 395 TR

EZMBEERMBABHRER - &
RBEBIBERAEBZBEME -

2.

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new
HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the presentation of the
consolidated income statement, consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated statement of changes in equity. In particular, the
presentation of minority interests and share of tax of associates
have been changed. The changes in presentation have been
applied retrospectively. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has
resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting policies in the
following areas that have an effect on how the results for the
current and prior accounting years are prepared and presented:

Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. HKAS 32 requires
retrospective application. HKAS 39, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, generally does
not permit the recognition, derecognition or measurement of
financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis. The
application of HKAS 32 has had no material impact on how
financial instruments of the Group are presented for current and
prior accounting periods. The principal effects resulting from the
implementation of HKAS 39 are summarised below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in
HKAS 39 with respect to the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope
of HKAS 39.

— =&
2

hFFH
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M & B X ME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA

I

(REFEZFEEBRAZ &5t RAIAEH)

2.

RAEEMEESER /
BEHEERE (o)

HBEEERBBEREZDELTE
(&)

HE—_ZZEMF+-_A=+—H1 -
AEBRBEFTEBERIE245E 2 &
BRI RETRGEZ RRAES
ZOEEAE - RIBEHAERELSE
245 - WEBBESFIBAFESFRE
BEHOBRREES] - [EiRE]
K[BEEIHZRE] - [REEF]
THERARORER K (E) 58k -
[EMRE I DA AT EERBRZZ R
BRBRREERAE - [BERIHZ
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

2.

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

By 31 December 2004, the Group classified and measured its
debt and equity securities in accordance with the benchmark
treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
(SSAP 24). Under SSAP 24, investments in debt or equity
securities are classified as “investment securities”, “other
investments” or “held-to-maturity investments” as appropriate.
“Investment securities” are carried at cost less impairment losses
(if any) while “other investments” are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses included in profit or loss. Held-to-
maturity investments are carried at amortised cost less
impairment losses (if any). From 1 January 2005 onwards, the
Group has classified and measured its debt and equity securities
in accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets
are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables”,
or “held-to-maturity financial assets”. “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale financial
assets” are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss and equity respectively. Available-for-
sale equity investments that do not have quoted market prices
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are measured
at cost less impairment after initial recognition. “Loans and
receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets” are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method after initial
recognition.

On 1 January 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt
and equity securities in accordance with the transitional provisions
of HKAS 39. As a result, “investment securities” amounted to
approximately RMB171,833,000 has been classified as “available-
for-sale investments” on 1 January 2005 (see Note 2A for the
financial impact).
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BE—FERF+-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities

From 1 January 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and
measured its financial assets and financial liabilities other than
debt and equity securities (which were previously outside the
scope of SSAP 24) in accordance with the requirements of
HKAS 39. As mentioned above, financial assets under HKAS 39
are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables”
or “held-to-maturity financial assets”. Financial liabilities are
generally classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss” or “other financial liabilities”. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss directly.
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method after initial recognition. The Group has
applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39. However,
there has been no material effect on how the results for the
current accounting period are prepared and presented.

Derivatives and hedging

From 1 January 2005 onwards, all derivatives that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 are required to be carried at fair value at each
balance sheet date regardless of whether they are deemed as
held for trading or designated as effective hedging instruments.
Under HKAS 39, derivatives (including embedded derivatives
separately accounted for from the non-derivative host contracts)
are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets or financial
liabilities, unless they qualify and are designated as effective
hedging instruments. The corresponding adjustments on changes
in fair values would depend on whether the derivatives are
designated as effective hedging instruments, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. For derivatives that are deemed
as held for trading, changes in fair values of such derivatives are
recognised in profit or loss for the year in which they arise. The
Group has no derivatives before 1 January 2005. As a result of
the changes in accounting policy, the Group’s profit for the year
has increased RMB84,000.
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2A.

AL STATEMENTS (continued)

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)

Owner-occupied Leasehold Interest in Land

In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings
were included in property, plant and equipment and measured
using the revaluation model. In the current year, the Group has
applied HKAS 17 Leases. Under HKAS 17, the land and buildings
elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered
separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of
the lease payments between the land and buildings elements
can be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are
reclassified to prepaid lease payments under operating leases,
which are carried at revalued amount and amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. This change in accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively (see Note 2A for the
financial impact).

Summary of the Effects of the Changes in
Accounting Policies

The effects of the changes in the accounting policies described
above on the results for the current and prior years are as
follows:

—EThRF —ETNF

2005 2004

AR #TiT ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FE(RE = R A AR D Decrease in share of results of associates (386) —
FIT 15 %51 B 2k 4> Decrease in income tax expenses 386 —
REEBRBZVE Effect in loss for the year = —
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE _TTAFF_A=+—HIEFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

BHERMBHREER / 2. Application of Hong Kong Financial

ErtBRER 2 Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)

BB RED R ERE 2A. Summary of the Effects of the Changes in

(&) Accounting Policies (continued)

R-ZEENF+-_A=+—HBE=E The cumulative effects of the application of the new HKFRSs on

ZThFE-A—BEAFEEMBRSE 31 December 2004 and 1 January 2005 are summarised below:

HRZ R EHAmT

R-ZZME RZZZME R-BZRE
+-A=+-H & +ZB=t+-H REER -R-8
(B%E7) nE (E7) k4|1 (E3)
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2004 Retrospective 2004  Prospective 2005
(originally stated) adjustments (restated)  adjustments (restated)
AREFTT ARETFTT ARETFTT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Bkt Bkt Bkt

EAEIR ERIE17H BRI F39%

HKAS 1 HKAS 17 HKAS 39

BEARKEA Balance sheet items

0% BERZE Property, plant and equipment 768,745 - (68,551) 700,194 = 700,194
HiEREZBMNAEFHE  Prepaid lease payments on land use rights — - 68,551 68,551 = 68,551
RE Investment securities 171,833 - - 171,833 (171,833) -
MEHEZ %A Available-for-sale investments - - - = 171,833 171,833
HEERREZBRYE Total effect on assets and liabilities 940,578 = = 940,578 = 940,578
DURFER Minority interests - 4,284 - 4,284 - 4,284
Hign o BEYE Total effect on equity - 4,284 = 4,284 = 4,284
HERRER Minority interests 4,284 (4,284) - = = =
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

2. BRATEMBEREER/ 2. Application of Hong Kong Financial
B REER o Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)
2A. BERfRREBZFERE 2A. Summary of the Effects of the Changes in
(%) Accounting Policies (continued)
RZZEZEMF—A—BERHESY The financial effects of the application of the new HKFRSs to
BHREEEAEE R T2 the Group’s equity on 1 January 2004 are summarised below:
BT -
REZ5 RE 7
As originally
stated Adjustments As restated
ARET T ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BB
ERIE1H
HKAS 1
DERR R A = Minority interests — 3,968 3,968
Higmo BELE Total effects on equity — 3,968 3,968

Ao B3 82 2 e TS B AR R
M FERIRRE - AAREER
0 BRI SRR RS TE YA
EEHBRRERFERTAEAY
2 o
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104 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

The Group has not early applied the following new standards
and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these standards or interpretations will have no material impact
on the financial statements of the Group.
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HKAS 19 (Amendment)
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HKAS 21 (Amendment)

BB ERIFEI9% (BFTA)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB ERIFEI9% (BFTA)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BEGFERIFEIR K
BEEIBRELINFESE (BFTE)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

BRI BRELERE6T

HKFRS 6
BEMBRELRETH
HKFRS 7

&% (IFRIC) — 2B F45%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 4
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards / Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of the Effects of the Changes in
Accounting Policies (continued)

BERKE

Capital Disclosures '

BERE  REFBINRE

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures 2
BONETIRE HER 2

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 2
FREERNBR S 2 ReRBE MG HEIRE 2

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions 2
Mgz T EE:?

The Fair Value Option 2

HHREREH 2

Financial Guarantee Contracts 2

BEMER R R 2

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 2

SMIA : BE

Financial Instruments: Disclosures '

EroHetaEEE 2

Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease 2

BREE BRERBEEESMESER BN 2

Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 2

SEEEMSMELCEE — BN EHIREFHRE°

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market,
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 3

BEEBSHEE2RELEBERIREET 2
BBRERBEREL ¢

Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics *

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments on land use rights and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of
changes in equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at
cost and those acquired from a business combination are
capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, the cost model is applied to
the class of intangible assets. Intangible assets, excluding
development costs, created within the business are not
capitalised and expenditure is charged against the profit
in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Useful lives of acquired intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are stated at
cost and not amortised.
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Useful
lives are also examined on an annual basis and, where
applicable, adjustments are made on a prospective basis.

As intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of the intangible asset, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the intangible asset, is recognised in the income
statement in the year the intangible asset is derecognised.

Technical know-how

Expenditure on technical know-how acquired is capitalised
and amortised using straight-line method over their useful
lives, but not exceeding 20 years. Technical know-how is
not revaluated as there is no active market for these
assets.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

W R ERER DB RAF
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Intangible
assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired
(see the accounting policies in respect of impairment
losses for tangible and intangible assets below).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet
at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIBEE EBIRN . &t IR A )

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

1

3. EEEEE® 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) m¥k  BERRE (&) (d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
V- BERSREEREEZ Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of property,
R E 3G N &t A E (A R plant and equipment is credited to the revaluation reserve,
A - BRIEE bR AR S except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
R 2 B B &z T of the same asset previously recognised as an expense,
B o iR E 2 B EE W & in which case the increase is credited to the income
RANRR - A A IR E G statement to the extent of the decrease previously
e RIEZIEEINERE 2 AR charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
Mz mDBAMERA - B revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the
BEEZERERLZBBRN extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
FRIEMZBEEC EhHE reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
ek (nE) K ZFAITIER On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
Yo HtHEXNERAEREE the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to
W2 BB E AL E T E ARS retained earnings.
i A A o
M - BEREHITERA Depreciation is provided to write off the fair value of items
TR A E BN AT A (A (E of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
B AR TR MHE AT useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
=N residual value, using the straight-line method.
Y - BEREHEBEENEE An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
ok B EEFAZEETRRT upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
2 A (A B 18 457 FI| 25 FRF ER expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
HIER - BEIUEEES 2 Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
e sk & 18 (IR % BB 2 (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
EMEREFELAERER proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
EZHAE) NZIBEB BUERER in the income statement in the year in which the item is
ZERFT AR o dereognised.

(e) EBIRE (e) Construction in progress
FEIREEEESRBRAR Construction in progress comprises land use rights and
B2 - BREREE - Wik buildings, plant and machinery on which construction
AR 2R EEE (1 E) 5 and installation work has not been completed.
IR o BRABIEHBZEFHA - Construction in progress is carried at cost which includes
R R SR EI AR A RAE R costs of acquisition of land use rights, development,
Rk & 5 ORI B HAR B DA R % construction and installation expenditure incurred, interest
EEEMEMEEFRNF B and other direct costs attributable to the development
X (A) - TRERIREZK less any provision for impairment. On completion, the
REREEERRNZME - W construction in progress is transferred to appropriate
ST categories of other fixed assets.

R ER R AR A A
1 10 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

W= MEE o

L STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIFEEE iR RN &5t IR AR #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

3. FEEHEE®
(f) &mIA
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BE—FERF+-_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a Group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
four categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below.

ZThFEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIBEE EBIRN . &t IR A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

3. FERHBEK ® 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) &mMIA (&) (f) Financial instruments (continued)

BBBm AN TESRZ BEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
E
FHiRBEEARATEINER T Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has
EEEME  BEFAEER two subcategories, including financial assets held for
2 TG B EE R 25 T SR R A trading and those designated at fair value through profit
EEFBERAANTEINRZ or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date
BLEE - RUIPEREZE subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
#EERB - ERERUATES] value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
R B EETIRA FER with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
2 MATEZEDHEREE loss in the period in which they arise.
F 27 BB NANR B B R
IR o
B R EYHIE Loans and receivables
B R BN TN IR T T %5 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
PR < B E sk Al EE T 51 2 3F with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
MHESHIE - RS HEREZ in an active market. At each balance sheet date
BEH BERNMEWKRZE subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(BERWERLRERE - HAi (including trade and bills receivables, prepayments,
U ERIE ~ e RTEFUE deposits and other receivables, amount due from
FEREEZERATRIE - B immediate holding company, amount due from an
Bt A AIFIR ~ RITAAESR associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
RERERRIR® RIRITER and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
REER) R A B R AR5 interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
H 2 BB K AR AERE 2R An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
BEBEALR - REEBEE there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
AEEEREERERNER and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
PR WRZEEZREE carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
R R R BRR N R 4738 2 k5t future cash flows discounted at the original effective
ARB\eRELRERNER interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
FTE o EEE 2 AU E HEEIE subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
o E EN R E & TS recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
B EHEERE - BREEBR occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
SREEE S HIM T AR - to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at
HZEERNREHREE A2 the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
REE NS BEBRERBER what the amortised cost would have been had the
Z BB o impairment not been recognised.

IR FERERDBRAF

1 1 2 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE
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L STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIFEEE iR RN &5t IR AR #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments in
unlisted equity securities which are intended to be held
for a continuing strategic or long term purpose and are
stated at fair value, except for those equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, when
they are measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

In respect of available-for-sale financial assets carried at
fair value, the gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of an investment are dealt with as movements
in the investment revaluation reserve, until the investment
is sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss derived from the investment
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve, together
with the amount of any further impairment, is charged to
the income statement in the year in which the impairment
arises.

In respect of available-for-sale financial assets carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, when there
is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an investment, the carrying amount of the
investment should be reduced to the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset and the
amount of the impairment is charged to the income
statement in the year in which it arises. Any impairment
losses recognised shall not be reversed.
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payable,
other payables and accruals, amount due to an associate
and bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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L STATEMENTS (continued)
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s
balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired).
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
received or receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivatives financial instruments
(primarily forward contracts and interest rate swaps) to
hedge its exposure against foreign currency and interest
risk. Such derivatives are measured at fair value
regardless of whether they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge
accounting thus they are deemed as financial assets
held for trading or financial liabilities held for trading.
Changes in fair values of such derivatives are recognised
directly in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIBEE EBIRN . &t IR A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Impairment losses (other than intangible assets (see
the accounting policies in respect of intangible
assets above))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that other standard.
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

(1))

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the relevant lease terms.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initital direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

— =&
2

hFFH

Annual Report 2005 117




M & B X ME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA

(RIBEE EBIRN . &t IR A )
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. BERE ® 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(k) She (k) Foreign currencies
REHISREANEEERE 5 In preparing the financial statements of each individual
WK A EBERBYEEENU group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
SNz EHE (INEE) T Zx%i’ﬂ functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
T*’*% BHZEREXRRER recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
e EH (N BB ST the primary economic environment in which the entity
FELEME 2 EEE) LR - operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
REEER - DINEREBEZ dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
ERIEAYREEBZERE monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
KEIME o A TEUINE retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
EEZIEEEIER RN AT date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
BEETEE Q2 EREXSHKR denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
B WINEBERRTAE ZIE rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
EXIEE BAEHNKRE - determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

REERINEEBIEE RFEE Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
2 B E R R E A B monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
AR B ERFER - HEEKE are recoghnised in profit or loss in the period in which they
SBIBINETS 2 IR EFREE D arise, except for exchange differences arising on a
ZEBIEBEMEEACEL monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
BRON - FEUEIBRT - BEEER investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
ZRINERE P MR T ER exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
AR - WATEEMBEZIE consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences
SREARENREREEY arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
b X Z RN AR (E1R A at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
EREFERRANEREE except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
ZIEEEIBEEELEZEZER monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
SN ERIER T - EHERET recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

BERRANE R NER differences are also recognised directly in equity.

LA E B HAR A
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

(U]

(m)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. Renminbi) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as
a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets are presented as
deferred income and are released to income over the
useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense
items are recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the income statement and are
deducted in reporting the related expense/are reported
separately as ‘other operating income’.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. EEEEE® 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(n) WA (n) Taxation
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

W R ERER DB RAF
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(n) Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

Critical Accounting Judements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates and judgements (other
than those involving estimates) based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key source
of estimation uncertainty and the critical judgement that can
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial
information is disclosed below:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
of their estimated residual value. The determination of the useful
lives and residual values involve management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may impact
the depreciation in the year the estimate is changed and the
future period.
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4.

NCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Critical Accounting Judements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Amortisation of technical know-how

Technical know-how are amortised on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives
involve management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses the useful
life of the technical know-how and if the expectation differs from
the original estimate, such a difference may impact the amortisation
in the year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjust credit limits based on payment history and the
customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously
monitors collections and payments from its customers and
maintains a provision for estimated credit losses based upon its
historical experience and any specific customer collection issues
that its has been identified. Credit losses have historically been
within the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to
monitor the collections from customers and maintain an
appropriate level of estimated credit losses.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production. The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at each balance sheet date
and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity and debt
investments, bank loans, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables and other payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. In order
to mitigate the foreign currency risk, foreign currency forward
contracts are entered into in respect of highly probable foreign
currency forecast sales in accordance with the Group’s risk
management policies.

Certain trade receivables and bank loans of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s explosure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest bearing bank
loans.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2005 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity

of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal.
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(RIF &5 LERNZ B3R AR H))

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

6. EXH BWRRISBAEH 6. Turnover, Revenue and Segmental
Information
AEEFZREHE  RERHEE The Group is principally engaged in the development, production
m o B 2R - 2 (WA B R and sales of pharmaceutical products including bulk
#HAE) (LI REMER NFEER pharmaceutical, preparations (e.g. tablets and injections),
WAZIE AT : chemicals and other products. Revenues recognised during the

year are as follows:

—ZERE —TTWF
2005 2004
AR¥FTT ARKEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE - ERHEHERA Turnover - Sales of goods 1,712,102 1,524,409
Ho At e A Other operating income
RITH S BA Bank interest income 4,924 5,212
B REEHA A Interest income from loan to
an associate 80 =
AHEEZREFBEKA Interest income from an
available-for-sale investments 6,753 —
BEMEMA Interest income from an
investment security — 2,817
HeBA Rental income 1,786 1,559
FERHEE WA Sales of scrap materials 857 1,562
BERAEZREWA Dividend income from trading investments — 467
HEWME - BE kEHERE Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 1,730 2,136
HEBESHREZEER Y Realised gain on sale of trading investments 91 4,348
1 1 R Gain on disposal of land use right 12,912 —
HoAh Others 1,619 1,099
30,752 19,200
BN Total revenues 1,742,854 1,543,609
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HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

D=3 =
EXT WER7EBEH 6. Turnover, Revenue and Segmental
() Information (continued)
REEREBDHRBEREMAIES Analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year by
HERZ5MT business segment and geographical location of customers is set
out as follows:
(i) XESBEH (i) By business segment
ZEZiE —ZIQE
2005 2004
EREE i #it Bnki Lt st
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total
ABBFT ABBFT ABBFT ARETFTT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(E3))
(restated)
AHYA Segment revenues 1,719,832 23,022 1,742,854 1,532,742 10,867 1,543,609
NBEE Segment results 33,070 5,022 38,092 (25,296) (9,734) (35,030)
HKER Finance costs (22,166) (15,384)
EEBEARER Share of results of associates (2,732) (1,938)
BFiANaR)/ (%) Profit (loss) before taxation 13,194 (52,352)
] Taxation (13,696) (1,119)
rEER Loss for the year (502) (53,471)
I I
PBEE Segment assets 2,040,272 140,777 2,181,049 2,061,625 230,384 2,292,009
BENAER Interests in associates 30,279 - 30,279 22,893 = 22,893
RAREE Unallocated corporate assets - - - = = 538
BEE Consolidated assets 2,211,328 2,315,440
I I
HHAE Segment liabilities (833,268) - (833,268) (941,681) - (941,681)
RAMEE Unallocated corporate liabilities - - (7,923) - - (153)
aaf Consolidated liabilities (841,191) (941,834)
I I
BARY Capital expenditure 112,424 - 112,424 182,054 - 182,054
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 98,095 - 98,095 90,769 = 90,769
ARLERE / Impairment losses on an available-for-sale

BAREZHERE  investment / an investment security - 18,000 18,000 = 12,000 12,000
LENE  BE Gain on disposal of property,

PELLE: plant and equipment (1,730) - (1,730) (2,136) — (2,136)
HELHFEARNE  Gain on disposal of land use right (12,912) - (12,912) — = =
FEMAZAZEEE Write-down of inventories to

net realizable value - - - 121 - 121
“ETREFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA L STATEMENTS (continued)
(RIF &5 LERNZ B3R AR H))

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

6. EXT  WaRsBEH 6. Turnover, Revenue and Segmental
(&) Information (continued)
(ii) HBERENESBEIH (i) By geographical location of customers

Segment revenues

SEUWA
—EThHE ZETF
2005 2004
AR¥FTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE (BEEH) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,081,298 1,005,283
M Europe 318,489 214,827
=M Americas 111,972 219,917
H A Bl K Others 231,095 103,582
1,742,854 1,543,609
AEEBBEI% 2 EEHNR Over 99% of the Group’s assets are located in the PRC
R LU B 2RI EEME and therefore the anlaysis of segment assets and capital
AFAXZEH R 5 EBEF o expenditure is not presented.
7. HMHBEH 7. Finance Costs
—EEhREF —ETNF
2005 2004
AR%FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRITERF B Interest on bank loans 22,406 15,384
A GiER G Less: Government subsidies (240) —
22,166 15,384
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(IRIFEEE iR RN &5t IR AR #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

MR

REFEABEERAHEZHIBLNT ¢

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Taxation

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

—ZZHE ZETMEF
2005 2004
ARTIT ARKETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

PRI TS T PRC enterprise income tax
— AH (3k(a)) — current (Note (a)) 6,221 1,865
— LARIEE VIR LERH — under-provision in prior years 3,582 3,484
REHIE (7134) Deferred taxation (Note 34) 3,893 (4,230)
13,696 1,119

(@) AARE—FRRNFMHE
MEMmRARNEEREZERE
TE BREERRRBELR
[1994]B %1 2415155 KRR i 3T
FEAMT 10 5 a0 AT AR B UUE B EK
REERBA) {20024 18
HITFIE B ER15%MBE -
WESE RIS PIHE - 1
200452+ KA RIRIRAFE
EANCEMSBERARES
15% * AEEINILETFE
A& 533% @ I B £ &t F
BEPIEE -

AEBZHMTFRARR-ZE
IFEER -_ZETNFEEER
T8 WL B9 B3% A 7 B 1B 22 P
B -

(b) AEEBEE-_ZTAN_FT
WE+=-A=+—H81-mEE
B 6 [ 30 4 PR ER Bl R A ZB B A+
ERNEH - WEBANLESR
BERISBRE -

(a) The Company and a subsidiary are located in the high-
technology economic zone of Zibo City and are entitled
to preferential PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15%
from year 2002, according to Guo Shui Fa No. 151 “The
notice of applying favourable tax policies for the new and
high technology companies” issued by State
Administration of Taxation. The companies have obtained
the relevant approvals from the local tax bureau. From
year 2004, the operating results of the companies derived
from business conducted in the high-technology economic
zone are subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
while the business conducted outside the high-technology
economic zone are subject to an income tax rate of 33%.
This has been filed with the local tax bureau as a record.

Other companies within the Group are subject to income
tax at the rate of 33% on their taxable income for the
years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004.

(b) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived
from, Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December 2005
and 2004.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA IAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(RIF &5 LERNZ B3R AR H))

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

8. ®WE®W 8. Taxation (continued)
(c) FRZRBERAYHEEEER (c) The tax charges for the year can be reconciled to the
Aim A (E518) SR T profit (loss) per the consolidered income statement as
follows:

—EThE “EEMEF

2005 2004

AR%TIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(Z%))

(restated)

BB AR M (B18) Profit (loss) before taxation 13,194 (52,352)

% 33% Tax at domestic income

(ZZZMWF - 33%) tax rate of 33%

SFHEZBIE (2004: 33%) 4,354 (17,276)
RET R R 2 2 Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC (841) (2,165)
FEETUA Tax effect of income not subject to

tax purpose (9,030) (235)
OEEIL Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purposes 11,018 10,970
RERHIAE R Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses 4,613 1,081
VAR 2 D IR B Under-provision in prior years 3,582 3,484
AREREmEEZ Deferred tax liabilities resulting from

HRERIEA R an increase in tax rate (Note 34)

SFEE 22 (MY E34) — 5,260
HIEZ Tax charge for the year 13,696 1,119
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(RIFEE BRI B3 RARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

XEEEGR 9. Loss For the Year
—geEF  -—TEAF
2005 2004
AR¥TFiT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(E%)
(restated)

RNEE/BEIBRTHIIEE © Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

BEREEER Advertising and promotion expenses 71,673 72,228
i 85 Amortisation of technical know-how 808 780
Gl Auditors’ remuneration 1,085 1,328
M - BENMREBITE Depreciation 94,816 88,163
T Az AR Amortisation of prepaid lease
& SR IE payment on land use rights 2,471 1,826
HEMBATEE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 225 =
[ERzRESi=ES Net exchange loss —_ 1,319
T REFREEE Operating lease rentals on land
and buildings 922 1,114
RIBREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 7,598 15,993
WEBHFZRE Impairment loss on an investment
&8 (M 5E22) security (Note 22) — 12,000
AHHERE Impairment loss on an available-for-sale
ZREEE (M3E21) investment (Note 21) 18,000 —
HIERREEA Repairs and maintenance expenses 505 28,985
iff 7t I B B AR Research and development costs 19,676 9,607
BIRAN(TREES Staff costs (excluding directors’ and
REEZME) (HH5E12) supervisors’ emoluments) (Note 12) 130,147 122,731
EEREZEREIE Unrealised loss on trading investments — 11,449
17 BEWOR Z Al 8357 )% 8 Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value — 121
& B 5 Write-off of an investment security — 1,500
FEAGHE & A R IE (BIETE Share of tax of associates (included in
FEMRBEE DRI EEN) share of results of associates) 386 —
Rt A and after crediting:
M 5% W e Net exchange gain 928 —
HEWE  BEREERS Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1,730 2,136
& T A Gain on disposal of land use rights 12,912 —
HEEBREZR & A Realised gain on sale of
trading investments 91 4,348
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EHZE

CEERFF-ASt—ALTE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. &R 10. Dividends
—ZEZThRF —ZERYF
2005 2004
ARBTIT ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIRFPHRE : & Interim dividend paid: Nil
(ZZEZOF : &) (2004: Nil) per share — —
R R EIRR B Final dividend proposed:
HRARE®0.057T RMBO0.05 (2004: Nil)
(Z2ZTHEF : 1) per share on 307,312,830 A Shares
1%307,312,830A% AR% & and 150,000,000 H Shares 22,866 —
150,000,000f& HR& 5+ &
22,866 —

11.

T EEEE307,312,830AK K
150,000,000f%H% » ik AR HARE B &
AR #0.057T (37 & 75 %60.04827T -
ARRER) - BB FRENIREE
FRE EHERBE R BEHRE AT 7E
A& S REfE o

BREFEF (KR)

BRENGF (B18) RBEARAQ AR
BEEBAZEGAEEEHARE
1,229,000 (ZZZF : BEAR
#52,485,0007T) K& IZF NE BTG
2 IntEF15%457,312,8300% (—EF
VU4 : 457,312,8300%) 5t & -

HE—_ZZRFN-_ZTTNF+= A
=t HLEMEFE 192 F &
REEER B BB - SR E
BRANEKNBEETZE -

11.

The final dividend of RMBO0.05 per share (approximately
HK$0.0482 per share, including income tax of A shares) on
307,312,830 A shares and 150,000,000 H shares has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has been
included as a dividend reserve in these financial statements.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share - Basic

The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of RMB1,229,000 (2004: loss of RMB52,485,000) and based on
the weighted average of 457,312,830 (2004: 457,312,830) shares
in issue during the year.

There was no dilution effect on the basis earnings (loss) per
share for the year ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 as there
were no dilutive shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2005 and 2004.

W R ERER DB RAF
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L STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEZE L EBRN SR H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BEIRFE (FEEEERE
Eile)

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

12. Staff Costs (Excluding Directors’ and

Supervisors’ Remuneration)

—EERF —EEF
2005 2004
AR¥TFiT ARMTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HFMRIE Salaries and wages 85,390 83,674
STRF R E A ERL Staff welfare and other benefits 26,841 20,379

BIREA - RE Retirement costs - defined
HRRETE (FED) contribution plans (Note) 17,916 18,678
130,147 122,731

KeE - Note:

ANEE S H TR KRR E  SFEZH
FEARE - FAEENTREEZH S AL
Zah (BBl BEH23% (ZTTMWE -
23%) - B AEABBKRAR LR ASARES534
T (ZERTWME : ARKES 1177T) o IAHEEERK
SEMBRRELRABEERNR -

FMEBRTKEERAZEBRMERERAKRT
B RENE E L PIR R IRTER) - M BT &
RERKF BB BARAEAEEZHDRKM
HACR AR R BROTRA o Eit - BR ESCPRit Ay 4
O AEEWEEESERSTRAKEARL
R AR ARA o

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in a basic
defined contribution pension scheme organised by the local municipal government,
whereby it is required to pay contributions at the rate of 23% (2004: 23%) on the
total salaries, bonuses and allowances (the “relevant income”) paid to the Group’s
staff in the previous year. The monthly relevant income per head of a staff is subject
to a cap of RMB3,534 (2004: RMB3,117). Contributions to this retirement scheme
are charged to the income statement as and when incurred.

All employees are entitled to retirement benefits equal to a fixed proportion of their
salary at their normal retirement age. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired staff
of the Group. Accordingly, the Group has no other material obligation for payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contribution described above.
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BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

13. EFREFHS

RENEAN i AN VA Gt

IAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. Directors’ and Supervisors’ Emoluments

TR+

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 18 (2004: 15)

A ESZHES0T ! directors and supervisors were as follows:
Ig:
fefl - &R
ZZZTERE e REMET BFET o 3]
Salaries,
bonuses,
allowances
and other Retirement
2005 Fees benefits benefits Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HOIESE Executive directors
Emgkt Mr. He Duanshi — 180 9 189
BEAREAE (1) Mr. Lu Shengmin (Note 1) — 108 6 114
e Er s Mr. Liu Congde — 144 9 153
B ELL Ms. Guo Qin - 144 9 153
HEFAEL 5 4 (it aE2) Mr. Zhao Songguo (Note 2) — — - -
5 kEE(E2) Mr. Ma Yong (Note 2) — — - =
BUFRTES Independent non-executive directors
B BEE (H:E3) Mr. Xiao Yu (Note 3) — 50 - 50
HERLE Mr. Dai Qingjun — 50 - 50
Efhpkat Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen — 50 - 50
% ELE (M) Mr. Sun Hua (Note 3) - 50 — 50
REFLE (H:E2) Mr. Xu Guojun (Note 2) = = — -
FHR= LA (E2) Mr. Sun Minggao (Note 2) - = = =
2=z Supervisors
BREEE Mr. LG Zhongde — 50 9 59
®AIBLE Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 20 — 20
BElEE Mr. Tao Zhichao - 20 — 20
=B (P aEa) Mr. Gao Qinggang (Note 4) — 108 9 17
2Rt (f7E3) Ms. Zhai Lumin (Note 3) = = = -
TRBEE (5E2) Mr. Yu Gongfu (Note 2) — — - -
Hob Total — 974 51 1,025
Hitat Notes:
1. REZZEZTRAFNAZTNBHEARES 1. Removed from the office of directors of the Company on 26 August 2005
B
2. R-ZZRF+_A-+_HEZFE 2. Appointed on 22 December 2005
3. R-ZETRE+ A -+ -HEE &, Resigned on 22 December 2005
4. R-BERFE+-HA -+ BEEEHRTT 4. Resigned as executive director and appointed as supervisor on 22
EENEZERES  —TTRFEM December 2005, the above paid emoluments was executive directors’
EHERAITEEMS emoluments.

SR E R RO B R F
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

EEREFHME & 13. Directors’ and Supervisors’ Emoluments
(continued)
I%-
TE4T - 8L
—STQNF e REMRF] RIKEH o]
Salaries,
bonuses,
allowances
and other Retirement
2004 Fees benefits benefits Total
ARETT ARETT  ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEF Executive directors
Bl L4 Mr. He Duanshi - 260 8 268
BER%E Mr. Lu Shengmin - 220 8 228
B Mr. Liu Congde — 169 8 177
B ELt Ms. Guo Qin - 171 8 179
FIRLAE () Mr. Li Shixiang (Note 1) — 93 6 99
BER%E Mr. Gao Qinggang - 140 8 148
BUFRTES Independent
non-executive directors
H Bx&E Mr. Xiao Yu - 50 — 50
BERLE Mr. Dai Qingjun — 50 - 50
BB EE Mr. Mok Chung Kwan,
Stephen — 50 — 50
B OERE Mr. Sun Hua - 50 — 50
2= Supervisors
SRERE (1) Mr. Ma Jingxing (Note 1) — 117 125
BRELE Mr. Li Zhongde — 48 56
RAIELE Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 20 — 20
MEBEE Mr. Tao Zhichao - 20 — 20
BRHLL Ms. Zhai Lumin - — — —
Fak Total — 1,458 62 1,520
Bz - Note:
1. RZZTZENF+—A -+ HEE 1. Resigned on 20 December 2004

R-TZERFER - TETNE+ =
+—B R - #EEE E kB E R E
% .

No directors or supervisors waived their emoluments in the
years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004.

—EERFEFR
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(RIF &5 LERNZ B3R AR H))

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

14. EREI& 14. Employees’ Emoluments
FN - ASEERFHMHATBREMRLLE Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
E(CETNF  ANES) - E@e two (2004: five) were directors, whose emoluments are set out
FHEHRHFIS BB = (=T in note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2004:
WE - B EaiMATzMemT - Nil) highest paid individuals were as follows:—
—ZZRE ZETF
2005 2004
AR¥FTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T& - fB4L - 2R Salaries, bonuses, allowances
Ko EL Ath 48 F) and other benefits 465 —
R KRR F 5 &I LK Retirement benefits 28 —
493 —
HMES BN FLATEER : Their emoluments were within
the following bands:
EAHMA
Number of employees
—EThRF ZETNF
2005 2004
& AR#1,000,000 Nil to RMB1,000,000 3 —
3 J—

LR HERERABRAT
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(IRIEZE L EBRN SR H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

15. Hiilg 15. Technical Know-How
RMB’000
AR¥EFT
R & CcoST
R-ZZTME-A—BE At 1 January 2004 and
—ZZNE+-_A=+—H 31 December 2004 5,000
12 40 Addition 1,550
R-ZZETERF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 6,550
e AMORTISATION
RZZETENF—H—H At 1 January 2004 780
NEHEH Charge for the year 780
RZZEZENF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2004 1,560
NEFHETH Charge for the year 808
R-ZZETERF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 2,368
BREE CARRYING VALUES
R-ZEERF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2005 4,182
R-ZZWFE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2004 3,440

AEBEBNORMEE=TTBA - :i7iz
HAaft AFHIE6F AT R=#

The Group’s technical know-how were acquired from third parties.
The technical know-how have definite useful lives and amortised
on a straight-line basis over four to six years.
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

16. WX - BER®G 16. Property, Plant and Equipment
BE #&
BEW Rk iR RE - hy
Plant,
machinery
and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
ARETFT ARETT  AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Ef4E VALUATION
RZZTEF—F—H At 1 January 2004 313,208 793,643 18,439 1,125,290
RERTREA Transferred from
(FizE17) construction-in-progress (Note 17) 15,088 51,400 — 66,488
HhE Additions 2,576 16,866 1,403 20,845
HE Disposals (261) (16,007) (2,250) (18,518)
i
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2004 330,611 845,902 17,592 1,194,105
RERTIREA Transferred from
(FI3E17) construction-in-progress (Note 17) 82,327 96,327 — 178,654
NE Additions 288 29,301 762 30,351
HEME A Disposal of a subsidiary — (208) — (208)
i Disposals (11,090) (12,402) (4,885) (28,377)
RZETHEF
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 402,136 958,920 13,469 1,374,525
ZRnE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
—TTNF—F—H At 1 January 2004 110,632 300,826 10,596 422,054
AEEHE Charge for the year 13,336 72,019 2,808 88,163
HE 2 3 Eliminated on disposals (253) (13,936) (2,117) (16,308)
—TENE
ﬂ'_ﬁ! =1+—H At 31 December 2004 123,715 358,909 11,287 493,911
REEHE Charge for the year 15,684 76,916 2,216 94,816
HEHBAT Disposal of a subsidiary — (72) — (72)
HE 2 3 Eliminated on disposals (10,269) (11,829) (4,864) (26,962)
RZETHF
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 129,130 423,924 8,639 561,693
IREE CARRYING VALUES
R-ZZZRE
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 273,006 534,996 4,830 812,832
RZZENF
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2004 206,896 486,993 6,305 700,194

IR ERER O BR A
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L STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIFEEE iR RN &5t IR AR #)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

16. ME  BERRE &)

REBREEEMUINHE -

REFERQ TR REN BB
ARGIBRAR LT » AR
AIME - WEREEEER
—NhAF+=ZA=+—HH
PR G ERMLRSHEE
EFTIRT EEE K AR LE(E
HE - EHEAEAARE
6,420,0007T ° E&EARNA AR
ME - BB REER -
FNA=Z+HA—BLHER
- EEAIFFRNI T AR A RIIE D
FAMEENGE SXEMHE
EAANRE22,625,0007C ° A
EEHEEREEEE-F
ERF+-_A=+—HIFE
EMHTEERAARY
432,0007T (ZZZNF : AR
#457,0007T) ©

WAREEYE - BB R&E
A ER R EHHTE AR - #%
SEEZEMESOMNNR

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(a)

(b)

All buildings of the Group are located in the PRC.

In the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Company’s property, plant and equipment were firstly
revalued as at 31 December 1995 by Shandong Certified
Public Accountants, a firm of valuers registered in the
PRC on a depreciated replacement cost basis as part of
its restructuring. The revaluation surplus was
RMB6,420,000. Another separate revaluation was carried
out on the Company’s property, plant and equipment as
at 30 September 1996, by Chesterton Petty Limited, an
independent valuer, on an open market value basis. This
has resulted in a further revaluation surplus of
RMB22,625,000 to the Company. The adoption of the
above two revaluations in the accounts has resulted in
an additional depreciation charge of RMB432,000
(2004: RMB457,000) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2005.

Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
value of such property, plant and equipment in the
accounts would have been approximately:

—EThHE ZETF

2005 2004

AR%FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EEY) Buildings 270,281 203,638
ME - Hes kR Plant, machinery and equipment 533,385 485,410
B Motor vehicles 4,344 5,819
808,010 694,867

—TTRETH
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(d)

RZEZERF+A=+—
H AEBZBEWME  HE
RBYBRARRERRITE
BEMRAEEEME - ARE
HEER-_ZEZERF+ A=
+—HAZEEBETESEAE
2 EZRAME  BERE
BER_EERAF+_RA=1+—
HrREED S AT RERE
RE Bz lKEEE -

AEME - BERREZITE
HERARE - 5% - BER

ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

16. ME  BERRW &)

16.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(d)

At 31 December 2005, all property, plant and equipment
of the Group were revalued by the directors on a
depreciated replacement cost basis. Since there are no
material differences between the revaluated amount and
the carrying value at 31 December 2005, the directors
are of the opinion that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2005 fairly reflected
their recoverable amount at that time.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful

REVAFERFHNAT lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:
EEY 20 Buildings 20 years
WE - Hees R 5- 104 Plant, machinery and equipment 5 -10 years
E 5 Motor vehicles 5 years
17. E&2I1%# 17. Construction-in-Progress
ZZEERE ZZTF
2005 2004
AR T AR®EFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—H At 1 January 221,164 130,803
30 Additions 79,400 156,849
HAYE WE Transfer to property, plant
=4 (fisE16) and equipment (Note 16) (178,654) (66,488)
P A b0 R Transfer to prepaid lease payments
Z TN HAEFIA on land use rights (27,595) —
HeE Disposal (4,147) _
R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 90,168 221,164

FREIRER-_ZTRF+=_A=1
— B IEfE A M R IR E R FEEEY) -
R RS R BT ENHAY - R
EERE+-_A=+—BER-_ZEZN
FEMDRBEBEREEIRENER

FREIRSEBENRTRILEREE
A LtwERAEZITSARKE
2,641,000 7T (Z T4 : ARHEE
34,383,0007T) °

R ER R AR A A
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Construction-in-progress comprises expenditures incurred on
buildings, plants and machinery not yet commissioned at
31 December 2005. For the years ended 31 December 2005 and
2004, no loans were borrowed for financing construction-in-

progress.

Included in construction-in-progress,

RMB2,641,000

(2004: RMB34,383,000) represents prepayment for purchase of

land use rights in Zibo, Shandong, the PRC.
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(RIFEE BRI B3 RARH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

TiEREZAMGEER 18. Prepaid Lease Payments on Land Use
| Rights
—EFEE  -—TTNA
2005 2004
AR¥FIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBEBBNHEERBERE The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:
RS Leasehold land in PRC:
=t Medium-term lease 89,639 66,734
YRl Short lease 1,817 1,817
91,456 68,551
MMEMEL 22T ! Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MBEE Current asset 2,471 1,826
IERBEE Non-current asset 88,985 66,725
91,456 68,551

REFEERESFHz L FERE - I
ERTH FEEEF c AEED I
ZBERBZARIEHORE  MAER
TMEAEEABTEERE TZE L
FERESEERERE - RZET
AFE+-A=+—HB AEEHRE
BRIERFAEZ L ERERFEY
BARKS1,213,0007T (ZTTPU4E :
AN H4,184,0007T) - EERA
REEERYEBETSAREMLR
ZEL MRS EXTE MR
EERE > 2SRz FRAT
BREAERAERIS -

2R B 2 (s FRE 2 TN TR E IR
A ERBAITEAR  2SE8EZ
REEHSLOAARKEI,115,0005T

ZZZF ¢ AR¥68,210,0007T) ©

The Group has acquired land use rights in the PRC and has
erected buildings thereon. While the Group has paid substantially
the full consideration of the purchase consideration, the relevant
government authorities have not granted formal title to certain
of these land use rights to the Group. As at 31 December 2005,
the carrying value of the land use rights for which the Group had
not been granted formal title amounted to approximately
RMB31,213,000 (2004: approximately RMB4,184,000). In the
opinion of the directors, the absence of formal title to these land
use rights does not impair the value of the relevant properties
to the Group. The directors also believe that formal title to these
land use rights will be granted to the Group in due course.

Had the prepaid lease payments on land use rights of the Group
been carried at cost less accumulated amortisation, the carrying
value of such prepaid lease payments on land use rights in the
accounts would have been approximately RMB91,115,000 (2004:
RMB68,210,000).

—TTRETH
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HE_TZERF+_A=+—HIFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

19. BIEANFIER 19. Interests in Associates
—EZHE ZEEMF
2005 2004
AR #TiT ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JiAE il AN Cost of investment in

& 7 KA associates, unlisted 34,831 24,831

FEIEHEIRE R R s R Share of post-acquisition
2 BERFEE losses and reserves (4,552) (1,938)
30,279 22,893

RZEZERFT+_A=+—HZEE The details of the associates as at 31 December 2005 are as

NEFEBEET follows:

30 AR 3 Fifs FERBR

AR&E B REERM EREXER ERER BERY

Place of Principal
incorporation Effective activities
Class of and kind of Particulars of interest and place of

Name of associate shares held legal entity registered capital held operation

HEBHE - ANERE SRR hE - AR % 716,000,000 50% R EEEY
BREARTE BERT Cik) REBERm
(%% - BAR)

SINO-USA Zibo Xinhua— Contributed PRC, limited USD6,000,000 50% Production of
Perrigo Pharmaceutical capital company (Note) medicine and
Company Limited medical products
(“Xinhua - Perrigo”) in the PRC

WRHAERE(LIARAR NS TE - AR AFE%25,000,000 40% RABEEER

BERTA HELEREA

Shandong Xinhua Longxin Contributed PRC, limited RMB25,000,000 40% Manufacture and
Chemical Co., Ltd. capital company sales of bulk

pharmaceuticals

Bt - Note:

HE - BNRRARREXEFNSERAR L
RAKzAERR > EEEXBRANTRAEES
YMREHERR - ZEERRZEMRBREARR
6,000,000 7T + H A 785 [#])+ & 38 43,000,000
XIT  HARERE - BARRREHZAERR
ZEBTREACHEN EFRHZAERA
Ty E N E] e

SR E R RO B R F
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Xinhua-Perrigo is a joint venture between the Company and Perrigo International,
Inc for the production of medicine and medical products in the PRC. The registered
capital and paid-up capital of the joint venture is USD6,000,000, of which the
Company contributed USD3,000,000 for its 50% share. The directors regard the
joint venture as an associate as the Company only exercises significant influence
in its management.
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BE _TTAFF_A=+—HIEFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

19. Interests in Associates (continued)

REEBE AR ZHMBENRERT The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
R associates is set out below:
—ZETRE ZEEMEF
2005 2004
ARETFiT ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEBE Total assets 91,783 53,837
aEeE Total liabilities (25,832) (8,050)
BERE Net assets 65,951 45,787
RNE B (RS Group’s share of net assets
RRIZEEFE of associates 30,279 22,893
X0 Revenue 20,471 178
FRNEE Loss for the year (5,131) (8,875)
A5 B AL B Group’s share of results
RNAIZFANEE of associates for the year (2,732) (1,938)
BEATER 20. Loan to an Associate
—ETRE ZEEMF
2005 2004
AR¥TFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
/NN = Loan to an associate 6,921 2,481
Fﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Carrying amount analysed
mED TN for reporting purposes:
mENEE Current assets (receivable
(ExRFAIREEAEBAR within 12 months from the
—FRYkE) (HE26) balance sheet date) (Note 26) 2,481 —
ERBEE Non-current assets (receivable
(ExAIREEABAR after 12 months from the
—F {& Uk [E) balance sheet date) 4,440 2,481
6,921 2,481
—ETRHEFR
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. BEEAFER @ 20. Loan to an Associate (continued)
WERBERTHE -6 5H The amount represents loan advanced to an associate, Xinhua-
FIREER - R SRS FEFEHE - Perrigo. The amount is unsecured, carry interest at prevailing
He#) AR #2,481,0007T 72006 F market rates. Other than the amounts of RMB2,481,000 repayable
7AEIH - 2 TEFKR200756A 2 in July 2006, the remaining amounts is repayable in June 2007.
H -Z2RALEFNREEABRAZ In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the loan to an
BREEEAEDISH S HE 2 &R associate as at the balance sheet determined based on the
ERENAFEERS - present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

using the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date was
approximate to their carrying amount.

21. AtHEZRE 21. Available-for-sale Investments

RZZEZAF+_A=+—HA#E
EREWT :

Available-for-sale investments as at 31 December 2005 comprise:

—EThF
2005
ARBFT
RMB’000
JELETIRE Unlisted securities:
— RAEFESH — equity securities 53,777
— EHFEREEFHE — debt securities with fixed
527% MR _EZLF interest of 5.27% and maturity 117,000
+ A EH () date in July 2007 (Note a)
W BRERBEEE (FiEb) Less: Impairment loss recognised (Note b) (30,000)
k] Total 140,777

AERERIFLHHBEBEAKRE - &
ERERIIRAREMRRKAATE
BMEFDREBEAR - REZELRAE
BHEHRE  EERARENAAEZ
ETFEE AR ZM - UBE AR IR
AAREEREIRZ AN -

Hitt :

(a) 2004478 - NEEKE1.IETLME
BEHRERREARAR ([E581H])
RARIEHERERRERAR ([EXA
Al WE RN PR A EEEERNA
A i f% Z K AR W BB T B 5 & & 5T
B - BMEARAFHEGBEBORERNS S
BHREEEER  AEEBRESTSE
BEGENREERBERRER © A
FEROREEERNEENETEAS
MUz - ZEEESEAB=F "M
FRBEHRRERSHE% - 55 &
BERAFEHFREARE ARK1,3008
TTALR -

IWERITERZER D AR A A
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The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the
PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at each balance
sheet date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

(a) In July 2004, the Group invested RMB130,000,000 in an equity acquisition
trust fund plan organised by Qingdao Hisyn Trust & Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao Hisyn”) for Shenzhen Hengye Investment Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Hengye Company”) to acquire equity interests in a company engaging
in pharmaceutical manufacturing business in the PRC. Under the
arrangement, Hengye Company undertakes to pledge the equity interests
acquired to Qingdao Hisyn in full amount. The Group agrees that Qingdao
Hisyn uses the above equity interests so pledged to repay the trust fund
principal and interest to the Group in the event that Hengye Company was
in default of repayment. The trust fund plan is for a term of three years
and the return to the Group is at a rate of approximately 5% per annum
on the investment amount. During the year, Qingdao Hisyn has repaid
RMB13,000,000 principal to the Group.
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AHEZRSE @)

HeE . (&)

b) R-ZTTRFE+_A=+—0 A7
BAREBEHARETAR (—RIFLT
M H N ) 2 BRENEERABAR
#3,0008 7T c Z QR EEGRVERE
e RAREFRUMBE_TTRF
TZA=+—BILFEEZREREER
EINHEEIEARKE1,8008 T (ZFF
e AR¥A1,20087T) - EERE -
ZRENRE2EMSRARELFZ S
REIEREBBEEREMETMIEL -

"E

RZZEZNFE+_A=+—BHRE
WTF-R-ZBTZRF—A—B BRF
ABEBEFEREI9N - NEEKIR
AENHEERTTHEERE FBEER
R mERMEE2) -

21,

22.

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Available-for-sale Investments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2005, the Group held an investment in Tian Tong
Securities Company Limited, an unlisted securities trading company, at
a cost of RMB30,000,000. The securities trading company is facing financial
difficulties. As such, the Company’s directors recognised an additional
impairment loss of RMB18,000,000 (2004: RMB12,000,000) for impairment
of the investment for the year ended 31 December 2005. The directors
are of the opinion that the impairment is made base on their best estimation
with reference to the market situation and circumstances of the securities
trading company.

Investment Securities

Investment securities as at 31 December 2004 are set out below.
Upon the application of HKAS 39 on 1 January 2005, investment
securities were reclassified to available-for-sale investments
under HKAS 39 (see note 2 for details).

—_ZEZWEF
2004
ARETFT
RMB’000
JELTHRE - RKAE (MHiEa) Unlisted investments, at cost (Note a) 183,833
B BRRBEEE (Fiib) Less: Impairment loss recognised (Note b) (12,000)
171,833
KiaE - Notes:
(a) JELETIREARMA — RKEE 21(a) (a) For details of the unlisted investments, see note 21(a).
(b) WERBERE — BHE 21(b) (b) For details of the impairment loss, see note 21(b).
78 23. Inventories
—EERF ZETNF
2005 2004
AR¥TFTT ARMTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
=M Raw materials 49,439 40,725
TR Work-in-progress 92,973 88,885
ERK Finished goods 120,930 161,285
A Consumables 11,423 9,358
274,765 300,253

LART IR FE R 2 A E B EK A
BREEAS X ARYS,531,000T (==
TP - AR%3,611,0007T) °

Included in the above were finished goods of approximately
RMB8,531,000 (2004: RMB3,611,000) carried at net realisable
value.
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

24. BUHERRRE

24. Trade and Bills Receivables

Z—EZhEF —ZEZTF

2005 2004

AR®TFTT AR T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

B UL BR 3 & B R Trade and bills receivables 292,491 346,171
B RIBERER Less: Allowance for bad

and doubtful debts (10,770) (21,833)

281,721 324,338

K=TERE+-A=+—H BN
I 14 2 T PR R SR R OB 5

At 31 December 2005, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance is as follows:

R
—EERF ZETNF
2005 2004
ARB¥TFT ARMTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F AR Within one year 262,759 303,801
—FE-F One to two years 15,247 16,170
—FE=F Two to three years 3,715 4,367
281,721 324,338

AREZ W OHE 2 BEEUER
BN HRE S R THE  HEE
2 Rt A REER S RET
R SRR P 2 B R B RRTT
FARIERE -

R=ZFETERAF+-_A=+—8 &%
Bz EWERRER 2 AN ERRE
ZEREEMES °

SR E R RO B R F
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The Group’s turnover from export sales is on letter of credit or
documents against payment. The remaining balances of turnover
are on open account terms which are partially covered by
customers’ stand-by letter of credit or bank guarantees.

The fair value of the Group’s trade and bills receivables at
31 December 2005 approximates to the corresponding carrying
amount.
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R OR M E e

L STATEMENTS (continued)
(IRIEZE L EBRN SR H)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

PR H 2 AR X R R IR

JE U E R AR AR A B FRE R AR N
FLERIFIE - B T 41 ARH9,507,000
T(ZEENF : M ER_TERF
NAREN  SRBANEREEE -
R-ETERAF+-_A=+—08  1=E
HIBBIEE 5 FIEHARE28,991,000
T (ZZFZMFE - AR27,328,000
TT) » HEERATAHEEERAKE
JEWR R EMRAMBRAGTRE - R
“ETRE+-A=+—H  EKE
B A BIRIR T E U K FE A< B B AR
BARKRBERHEARZ FEE -

REERBBERTRKERZERARN
BERRFEERNRBEHANZRER
ENREERNTHSRABE R TEE
FREEMRE -

PR B E A B RIA

25.

26.

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Amount Due From Immediate Holding
Company

The amount due from immediate holding company is unsecured,
interest-free. Other than an amount of approximately
RMB9,507,000 (2004: Nil) will be repaid in September 2006, the
remaining amounts are repayable on demand. Out of the total
balance at 31 December 2005, approximately RMB28,991,000
(2004: RMB27,328,000) was trading in nature. The immediate
holding company has undertaken to settle and receive all amounts
due to and due from the fellow subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2005, the amount due from immediate holding company
represents the net balance due from and to the immediate
holding company and the fellow subsidiaries.

The fair value of the amount due from immediate holding company
as at the balance sheet, determined based on the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted using the prevailing
market rate at the balance sheet date approximates to its carrying
amount.

Amount Due From an Associate

ZE2HE —ETMF
2005 2004
AR¥TFIT ABRBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEYE - BAS

Amount due from

(B =E) Xinhua-Perrigo (Note) 554 —
BENRER Loan to an associate - due within
—F LA (K1 5E20) one year (Note 20) 2,481 —
3,035 —
Bt - Note:

U E - BMRFRRBEEN 28 RARE
REFEE -

Amount due from Xinhua-Perrigo is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

HEKRE 27. Trading Investments
ZETHEF —ERMEF
2005 2004
AR®TFIT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI ETHIRE Listed investments outside Hong Kong,
BmE at market value — 58,551

— =
=
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

28. BITRARERFERFER

BB AN 5 E B2 AR 1T 3 7] MO SRTT A K 17
EREZANER - AR FIRAKR
TERGEREZEZREMSEDN
20% - 30% TEAHBERITER P ARTT
EAEERES WERREFHA
EE ARTERLEZRES - 9
MARBEE - ZEREFERZE
TEFIE A 2.07% (2004 : 1.89%) @ 7
—EERF+-_A=+—8  &EXK
ZATFEHEERmERES °

29. TE®&MTIRA

28. Pledged Bank Deposits

The amount represents deposits pledged to bank to secure
short-term banking facilities granted to the Group in respect of
bills and letter of credit facilities and are therefore classified as
current assets. In accordance with the facilities agreements, the
Group is required to place deposits, which is amounted to
20 - 30% of the face value of the issued bills, to the banks. The
deposits carry fixed interest rate of 2.07% (2004: 1.89%). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of bank deposits at
31 December 2005 was approximated to the corresponding
carrying amount.

29. Derivative Financial Instruments

—$FEF  -—TTNS
2005 2004

AR®TIT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RHSME S £ Foreign currency forward contracts 84 —

RZZBZERF+-_A=+—H A&
BEAAETREMZERAL -
HNEEHIA N EEGEFAT ¢

£ 4

Notional amount

At 31 December 2005, the Group had entered into forward
contracts denominated in United States Dollar (“USD”). The
major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as

follows:
EMAA i
Maturity Exchange rates

A% 3,000,000 7T

—EERF—HA=H 0.1239% T H 1A R

Sell USD3,000,000
J# £ 3,000,000 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
JH £ 2,500,000 T
Sell USD2,500,000
A% 2,500,0003 7T
Sell USD2,500,000
A% 3,000,000 75
Sell USD3,000,000
JA 2,500,000 75
Sell USD2,500,000
J# £ 3,000,000 T
Sell USD3,000,000

2 January 2006
—EETRF-A=H

3 February 2006
—EERFZANRA

6 February 2006
—ETRF-ZA=+NH
28 February 2006
T RF=A=H

3 March 2006
—EERF=A=+—H
31 March 2006
—ETRFHEA=H

3 April 2006

USD0.1239 to RMB1
0.1243EFTHAIAR®
USDO0.1243 to RMB1
0.1242EF THAAR®
USDO0.1242 to RMB1
0.1245EF T HAA R
USDO0.1245 to RMB1
0.1246EF T HAAR M
USDO0.1246 to RMB1
0.1250E T 1A R
USD0.1250 to RMB1
0.1250E T 1A R
USD0.1250 to RMB1

W R ERER DB RAF
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(REFEZFEEBRAZ &5t RAIREH)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

fTEemI R @ 29.
ElATETARSEH BIRATE

Ho AATEDEASTAREHE A

Rz mEEE -

BB 1 R 3% B SR i 30.

R-ZZRAF+-A=+—8  EfH
EREREBENRESTAT

EHZE

—EEAFT- A=t —ALTE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Their fair values are determined based on the quoted
market prices for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet

date.

Trade and Bills Payables

At 31 December 2005, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills

payables is as follows:

—EThREF ZEEMEF

2005 2004

ARBTIT ARKFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 340,858 302,789
—FECF One to two years 1,038 855
—FEE=F Two to three years 412 579
BiB=F Over three years 3,312 3,546
345,620 307,769

RZZBERAF+ZA=+—08 &% The fair value of the Group’s trade and bills payables at
@Zﬁ%ﬁ?&l@m&ﬁEZQﬁf £ [7) #A 31 December 2005 was approximated to the corresponding
ZREBERSE carrying amount.
EfBHEATIRIE 31. Amount Due to an Associate
FERNEt S A ARIRIEAEEWM - 28 K& The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
BAREKEEE - repayable on demand.
BITER 32. Bank Loans
REBRTER EHRTER
Long-term bank loans Short-term bank loans
ZZZTHE e quifa3 —ZZHE —TTNEF
2005 2004 2005 2004
AEBTFIT AREFT AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERHZBTER Unsecured bank loans
R—ERE J,HH due within one year - 250,000 418,969 306,285

—TTEEEH
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

32. |ITEMK @)
B SR IHFIE -

RZZEZERF+_A=+—8 - 1T
B34 AR #220,000,0007T 1% &
EFEREE - Ed AR%20,000,000
TUNEREERS5 58%:tERARKE
200,000,0007T LA FF B 3 3.78%5T B ©
BRTEBITERANFEEX1.76% =
5.70%xt B2 ZFEBF REE -

R-ZZME+—A=+—H ' 17
ERBIEL AR 250,000,0007T 1%
EEMEGBELFBI51%:TE £
THRITEFRAF B E1.33%%3.61%
ATEZREEAEREE

7 82 B LA B 4R B 2 ) 2 1 B T M
S BT BT

32.

Bank Loans (continued)
The above amounts bear interest at prevailing market rates.

At 31 December 2005, bank loans include approximately
RMB220,000,000 fixed-rate borrowings, of which RMB20,000,000
carry interest at 5.58% per annum and RMB200,000,000 carry
interest at 3.78% per annum. The remaining bank loans are
variable-rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from 1.76%
to 5.70% per annum.

At 31 December 2004, bank loans include approximately
RMB250,000,000 fixed-rate borrowings which carry interest at
3.51% per annum. The remaining bank loans are variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest ranging from 1.33% to 3.61%
per annum.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

F=Ex BT

UusSD’000 HKD’000

R-EBEZERF+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2005 18,210 50,000
R-EENE+_—_A=+—H As at 31 December 2004 30,581 50,000

FR - ALSEESHEERESHES
AR #487,989,0007T - EXiZT 5
MEAFBELTER T NF2EE
3;% °

EERRARTEREZREREQTE
BE o

R-T2HEFR-FEMF+=A
=t+-B - AEERARREER
& o

R ER R AR A A
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During the year, the Group obtained new loans in the amount
of approximately RMB487,989,000. The loans bear interest at
market rates and will be repayable in 2006.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of bank loans

approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2004 and 2005, the Group has no undrawn
borrowing facilities.



NOTES TO THE CON

|..|.'.'.HL

W= MEE o

L STATEMENTS (continued)

(IRIZEBEBRNZ &5t IR AIAE #l)

(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE _TTAFF_A=+—HIEFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

33. B&F 33. Share Capital
“EBBLER
—EEmFE
2004 & 2005
AREFIT
RMB’000
ETERAR Registered:
307,312,830/% 307,312,830
(ZZZW4F : 307,312,830/%) (2004: 307,312,830)
ABREBREEARET A Shares of RMB1 each 307,313
150,000,0000% 150,000,000
(ZZZ M4 : 150,000,000/%) (2004: 150,000,000)
HEEREEAREIT H Shares of RMB1 each 150,000
457,313
BETREERA Issued and fully paid:
307,312,830/% 307,312,830
(ZZZ U4 : 307,312,830/%) (2004: 307,312,830)
AREBREBEARBATS A A Shares of RMB1 each divided into:
ElEN State shares 214,440
EAR Legal person shares 16,720
[EPN: Individual shares 76,153
307,313
150,000,000 150,000,000
(ZZZ M4 : 150,000,0008%) (2004: 150,000,000)
H SR EEARBT H Shares of RMB1 each 150,000
457,313

—EERFEFR
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

34. EBIERIFARB 34. Deferred Tax Liabilities

—EZTREF —ZEZTF
2005 2004
ARB¥TFTT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
mn—H—H At 1 January 153 4,383

R KRR (G A) Charge (credit) to income
(MI5E8) statement (Note 8) 3,893 (4,230)
R+—-_A=+—H At 31 December 4,046 153

AEEFRETRIE (B BEZ 2

The movement in deferred tax (assets) liabilities of the Group

BT during the year is as follows:
-hed ik Hitt #at
Accounting provisions Tax losses Others Total
ZEZRE —TTNS ZZBRE -—TTNF ZETRE _TTNE ZZERE _—TTNF
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
ARBTE ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
R—A—H
At 1 January 2,839 3,186 (3,519) — 833 1,197 153 4,383
RB &R =M E £ 2 B9
EIEHEREFEEM
Increase in opening deferred
tax liabilities resulting from
change in tax rate — 3,824 - — - 1,436 - 5,260
REEBREMG GEA)
Charge (credit) to income
statement for the year 259 (4,171) 3,519 (3,519) 115 (1,800) 3,893 (9,490)
KEEBRKMEG GTA)
Charge (credit) to income
statement for the year 259 (347) 3,519 (3,519) 115 (364) 3,893 (4,230)
®+=ZR=+—H
At 31 December 3,098 2,839 - (3,519) 948 833 4,046 153

SR E R RO B R F
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RZEZERFNUNA-+-H  A%EH
HAREBARKE116,0007T & 12 )1 3

ERFENBEMAES -

HETHERZEEFE
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L STATEMENTS (continued)

(RIEEEEERNZ &5t IRAIAEH])
(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

35. Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 22 April 2005, the Group disposed of its entire interest in
Dezhou Xinhua Tai Kang Drug Store Company Limited for a

consideration of RMB116,000.

Net assets disposed of:

ot 1 ¥ 3
2005
ARBFT
RMB’000
M - B R Property, plant and equipment 136
H fth jE Yy 3RIE Other receivable 23
wE Inventory 433
RITERERR® Bank balance and cash 51
JE < BR X Trade payables (67)
H i e - FRIE Other payables (9)
DR R R Minority interests (226)
341
HE 2 B Loss on disposal (225)
RE Total consideration 116
Wska = Satisfied by:
BE S Cash 116
LEMBARZ Net cash inflow arising
WERNFEINAT : on disposal:
BEReRE Cash consideration 116
HEZRITERER S Bank balances and cash disposed of (51)
HERBARZRE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
EBReZEEMRANFE in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary 65

FRAHEZHBRRHARE 2 E%

BREEREEATE -

The subsidiary disposed of during the year had no significant
impact on the Group’s turnover and results of the Group.

— =
=
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

36. EERFBETH 36. Major Non-Cash Transaction
REBEEZE-_ZTETRFT+_A=+—H1 During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group entered
FEAN AEEEF=FFITEHD into an agreement with a third party to dispose a land use right
%imﬁﬁﬁ&*&ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ%%Zﬁﬁm for a consideration of RMB19,000,000. The net consideration
AR #19,000,0007T ° EHIBRHE R receive or receivable by the Group is RMB16,254,000 after
RtinigEHE - AEBEEKRE R deduction of sales tax and land value-added tax. As at
ZREFEE A ARK16,254,0007T © 31 December 2005, RMB7,000,000 is unsettled and included in
RZZBZRAF+-A=+—H KE other receivables.

458 AR¥7,000,0007TE 5t A E A
FEUBR K -

37. |ITHE 37. Banking Facilities
AEBCROTDEELBARE The Group’s banking facilities of RMB420,000,000 (2004:
420,000,0007C (ZZFZMF | AR RMB250,000,000) were guaranteed by the immediate holding
250,000, 0007‘[3) HEEERAGE company. As at 31 December 2005, approximately
ReR_BEERF+_A=1+—8 " RMB370,696,000 of such banking facilities were utilised by the
HFAEEHEEDBFARE Group (2004: RMB200,000,000).

370,696,0007T < B (Z T MO 4F :
AR #200,000,0007T) °

38. KiE 38. Commitments
(a) CEX 3 (a) Capital commitments
(i) EEIRRYE  BE (i) Commitments for construction-in-progress and
R property, plant and equipment
RZEERF+=A At 31 December 2005, the Group had the following
=+—H8 AEEE capital commitments principally related to
EREEEEY R E construction-in-progress and purchase of property,
EXENTERIER plant and equipment in respect of buildings and
BEWE HEER production facilities which were not provided for
18 2 R BB R A in the accounts.
B
—ZZRE —EEMEF
2005 2004
AR #TiT AR FiT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRLERERE Contracted but not provided for 9,668 30,345
BEHUEBERERL Authorised but not contracted for 133,300 101,500
142,968 131,845

IR ERER O BR A
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

38. &Iz (&) 38. Commitments (continued)
(a) 'EXRE (H) (a) Capital commitments (continued)
(if) H (ii) Other commitments
REBRZ-ZZZENF The Group had capital commitment of
+—A=+—HEH# RMB2,253,000 to invest in a joint venture with
RIBER -t &R A 70% equity interest as at 31 December 2004. The
7 0% % #E H#) & 7 M & joint venture is engaged in trading of medicine
BEzeBRARARE and medical products in Europe.
2,253,0007T © Ut HE =
RAMEZEB AR
B 4% & BE ) K B8
AmES -
REERZ-ZZEZTMF At 31 December 2004, the Group had capital
TZA=T—RH%E commitment of RMB1,715,000 to acquire technical
BEARNLEE S & know-how in production of medical intermediates.
BERMmAE AR
1,715,0007T °
(b) BERERE (b) Commitments under operating leases
(i) REBEERFAEA (i) The Group as lessee
REERBLEERLD The Group leases certain of its retail shops under
ZHEEAETEE operating lease arrangements. Lease for
5o ZEWME LAY properties are negotiated for a term ranging from
CEREMESEH —F one to five years.
E2RF -
REEH KEEIR At the balance sheet date, the Group had
B A EE A A A commitments for future minimum lease payments
RFEE R Z %K under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
SEEMESAEN due as follows:
™~
—ZZRE ZETF
2005 2004
AR¥TFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 193 846
F_EZERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 132 889
hER Over five years 8 79
333 1,814

—EERFEFR
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

38. &iE (©) 38. Commitments (continued)
(b) BEHERE (D) (b) Commitments under operating leases (continued)
(i) AEEEATEEAA (iiy ~ The Group as lessor
AREBBBLELZHELD The Group leases its factory premises and offices
ZHHERE KT under operating lease arrangements, with leases
BNz KERS negotiates for an average terms of one year.
HFHR—F o
REEB  AEER At the balance sheet date, the Group had
BRI REEZEHA commitments for future minimum lease payments
T e Bt = W S S under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
=K E RS & E due as follows:
T
—EZThRF —ETNF
2005 2004
AR #TiT AR®EFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FRx Within one year — 1,629
FEZEFAF  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive — 70
— 1,699

LR HERERABRAT
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)

39. FRAEALES

(a)

f X M7E20 0 25 26 ' 31
N7 TN + AEBEEM

39.

HE_TERF+_A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Related Party Transactions

(a)

Apart from those disclosed in notes 20, 25, 26, 31 and
37 above, the other significant related party transactions,

FRXBHRENETCERNE which were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s
BEATRSZWENT : business are as follows:
—EThREF ZETNF
2005 2004
AR¥FTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEERAR : Immediate holding company:
— XAIFFHE — Payment of annual trademark
iz (M E) licence fee (Note) 200 200
RA&AMBAT : Fellow subsidiaries:
—HERK M — Sale of finished goods
KR R and raw materials 19,170 28,716
— R RM B — Purchase of raw materials 65,208 66,403
—BEYE KR — Purchase of property, plant
K& & and equipment — 9,512
—He WA — Rental income 1,506 1,506
—XBBR — Payment of labour and
H b RS other services 143 2,257
/NI Associates:
— HEKER — Sale of water, electricity and steam 367 —
— RERME — Purchase of raw materials 4,568 —
— MEHBA — Interest income received 80 —

Het -

Note:

R—AARNE+=ZA+tB ' "EEER
TEGERE  REBRARERARFTEH
RBIHINHER  FRHMEFE
([mE1Z]) - BE5 %A ARH600,000
7T HiEBFIRE ARY100,0007T
HEFBES LR ARKE1,100,000
TC WWREEBERTE  BEERET
LABRIE o W35 IR ZE R RIS G S AR 15
BEY - BE_TTHRFE+-_A=1+—
H LE &Y A 7Y & 87 B 2 AR SR B 2 A B9
£ 5 AR¥200,0007T © BAEEER
A BB F R W ER IR AR AT AT s B K
B EIRTATE o

On 7 December 1996, the Group was granted the exclusive right to use
the trademark “Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by the Group for its existing and
future products in and outside the PRC at an initial annual fee of
RMB600,000 increasing at the rate of an extra RMB100,000 per year until
the annual fee reaches the cap amount of RMB1,100,000, which shall
stay as such until the agreement is terminated. The terms of the agreement
shall continue to have effect during the validity period of the Trademark,
being 28 February 2013, subject to further renewal of the registration of
the Trademark. The annual fee paid by the Group was RMB200,000 during
the past four financial years ended 31 December 2005 as the immediate
holding company has waived a larger part of the trademark licence fees
under the trademark licence agreement.

—TTRETH
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BE—TTRFF-A=+—HIFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

39. AREALTERS © 39. Related Party Transactions (continued)

by RAEAFEN AEEREEE (b) During the year, the Group paid certain expenses on
RAGRBBAHOARE behalf of its immediate holding company totalling
24,602,0007C (ZZ = 4F ¢ RMB24,602,000 (2004: RMB21,921,000), which were
AR#21,921,000T) @ ME charged back to the immediate holding company on a
e 3uli @/NCIIEl b =S ET o=l S cost reimbursement basis. As at 31 December 2005, the
ERAERN - HEZZTZTRF+ amount due from the immediate holding company in
ZA=1+—H  EREEER connection with such transactions amounted to
ARIMEER2ERRARE RMB9,507,000 (2004: RMB13,953,000). In the opinion of
9,507,0007T (ZZEZEMFE : A the directors, the amount is unsecured, interest-free and
R #13,953,0007T) - EFR will be repaid in September 2006.

0 WEFIRTL BN - &
MERBER —ZZXRFNAE

(c) FEEEAE Z IR (c) Compensation of key management personnel
AEFESRHEMEEFTEA The remuneration of directors and other members of key
B2 HMBIAMT management during the year was as follows:

ZZTRE ZETEMF
2005 2004
AR¥FTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
g HitE A Short-term benefits 1,932 2,408
EEHERRBE 2B Post-employment benefits 148 129
2,080 2,537
BENFEEEABZEHMNMA The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
THEIRRFHME & 2 REE by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
AKBEERTIZBAERE of individuals and market trends.
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(PREPARED UNDER HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Subsidiaries

Details of Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005 are
as follows:

LR R

3] ELE £

Issued and fully
paid share capital /
registered capital

FERBRESHE

Effective
interest held

Principal activities and
place of operation

REMERBERR

Dongying Xinhua Drug Store
Company Limited

R 2 2 (BUM)
BRAA

Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe)
GmbH

Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trading Company Limited

MEHEREE ()
BRAR

Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy (Chain)
Company Limited

BEMEBER
BRAT
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited

MEFE=ALT
BERAR

Zibo Xinhua Sanhe Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited

hE - BREELR

PRC, limited company

B8 ERELAA

Germany, limited company

ME - BREELH

PRC, limited company

wE - BREEAA

PRC, limited company

wE - BREEAA

PRC, limited company

mE - BREELR

PRC, limited company

AR 900,0007 46.6%  RRELEEY
RBERARTE
RMB900,000 46.6%  Retail sales of medicine
and medical products
in the PRC
E170650,0007C 76.9%  REUNEEED
RBERRES
EUR650,000 76.9%  Trading of medicine
and medical products
in Europe
AR 48,498,900 99.8%  RAEEEEY
REZRmE
RMB48,498,900 99.8%  Trading of medicine
and medical products
in the PRC
AR #2,000,0007C 88% RRELEEY
RBERRTE
RMB2,000,000 88%  Retail sales of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
AR %2,000,0007C 0% REELZEE
TEMES
RMB2,000,000 90%  Design of medical
production projects in the PRC
%71500,0007C 70% REEEEZRERMHE
US$500,000 70%  Production of medical

intermediates in the PRC
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